Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you'll enjoy
the following benefits:

- Efficient, integrated PDF viewing
- Easy printing

« Quick searches

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8,
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.



http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html



CITY OF LUDINGTON
PLANNING COMMISSION
MINUTES 02/06/07

A meeting of the Ludington Planning Commission was held on February 6, 2007. The meeting was held at the Ludington
Municipal Building, 400 S. Harrison St., Ludington, Ml and was called to order at 7:00 p.m. by Clay Olmstead, Vice-
Chairperson.

ROLL CALL: The roll call showed the following results:
Present: Kaye Holman, Clay Olmstead, Joe Moloney, Chris Gamble, and Mike Nekola. Bill Loforte

Absent: Alan Neushwander, Robert Garrett (excused) and Chris Pontz (excused)

Also Present: Recording Secretary, Carol Ann Foote and City Attorney, Roger Anderson.
AGENDA APPROVAL.:

Election of officers was moved from unfinished business to after agenda approval.

Commissioner Nekola made a motion to approve the agenda, as amended, seconded by Commissioner Holman. Motion
carried unanimously.

ELECTION OF OFFICERS:
Commissioner Nekola made a motion to nominate Commissioner Olmstead for chairperson, seconded by Commissioner
Holman. Nominations were closed and the motion carried unanimously.

Commissioner Holman made a motion to nominate Commissioner Nekola for vice-chairperson, seconded by Commissioner
Moloney. Nominations were closed and the motion carried unanimously.

Chairman Olmstead appointed the following sub-committees:

Text: Holman, chairperson, Moloney and Neushwander

Special Land Use: Nekola, chairperson, Bob Garrett and Chris Pontz
Zoning: Olmstead, chairperson, Loforte and Gamble

PUBLIC COMMENTS:
No public comments
Close Public Comments

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:
Commissioner Holman made a motion to approve the minutes of the January 9, 2007 meeting, seconded by Commissioner
Moloney. Motion carried unanimously.

PUBLIC HEARINGS:
No public hearings
Close Public Hearing

UNFINISHED BUSINESS:

Final Development Plan-106 Laura St., LLC:
Doug Kloostra, BCI Construction, spoke on behalf of the development. He stated that he was excited about the project.
There had been contact with the DEQ and things were moving forward. He hopes that everything goes good.

Chairperson Olmstead explained that the Planning Commission forwarded the approval of the Preliminary Planned
Development to the City Council in January. The City Council unanimously approved the plan in their meeting of January
22, 2007 subject to the following conditions:

1. The developer shall comply with the parking requirements, as outlined in its letter to the City dated January
16, 2007.
2. The developer shall provide easements to the City of Ludington for all required infrastructure, including the
existing storm sewer along the west property line and the waterfront walkway.
Chairman Olmstead read a letter from Mark Harmsen, 106 Laura St., LLC, stating that construction on the project would
not begin until an arrangement had been made for joint or shared parking pursuant to Article 700.5 of the Zoning





Planning Commission Minutes

February 6, 2007

Page 2

Ordinance. A letter was read from Williams and Works confirming that, as the engineer/surveyor of record for the
development, they will work with the City to prepare and record easement documents for public utility and/or facility
purposes within the project.

Commissioner Loforte stated that he did not attend the January meeting and had questions concerning the project. He asked
about the public walk and bike path. He also wanted to know if the fish cleaning station was for the public and asked if the
public would be able to fish from the docks. Mr. Kloostra explained that both the walkway and fish cleaning station were
for public use. There would also be public restrooms. He pointed out the area where the public could also fish and docks
for charter boats.

Commissioner Moloney asked about the options for the retaining wall. Mr. Kloostra explained that they had two options,
concrete or pre-cast. Commissioner Moloney wanted to know about the footings and soil conditions. Mr. Kloostra said that
they would be engineered and designed properly. He said that Reith Reily would have their aggregate on one side that
would lower their piles. Commissioner Holman had concerns about the aggregate leaning on the wall. Commissioner
Nekola commented that it would be designed for that. Chairman Olmstead said that the aggregate would be there, no matter
what. The idea of the wall was to help hide the pile by reducing the height of the pile.

Commissioner Holman asked about the cupola dimensions. Chairman Olmstead said that the plan was showing sixty-eight
feet to the bottom of the spire. From grade to the top of the cupola measured eighty-six feet. Mr. Kloostra said that the
design intent was a gambrel roof style that met fifty-six feet to the mean of the roof. They asked for an allowance for
architectural elements.

Commissioner Holman made a motion to approve the Final Development Plan for 106 Laura St., LLC with the following
conditions, seconded by Commissioner Nekola:

1. The developer shall comply with the parking requirements, as outlined in its letter to the City dated January
16, 2007.

2. The developer shall provide easements to the City of Ludington for all required infrastructure, including the
existing storm sewer along the west property line and the waterfront walkway.

Motion carried unanimously.

Public Hearing:
To consider a request from Hal Hazard and Judy Emlaw, 1965 W. Conrad Rd., Ludington, MI. for a text change to the

Ludington Zoning Ordinance #23-00 to allow personal service establishments in the M-R (Motel-Resort) District in order to
establish a full service salon/day spa at the following described property: UNPLATTED A PARCEL COM. AT A POINT
ON N LINE OF BLOCK 52, ORIG. PLAT, LOCATED 62.6 FT W OF NE CORNER OF LOT 4, BLOCK 52, THW ON N
SIDE OF BLOCK 52 A DISTANCE OF 72.3 FEET, TH S ALONG E SIDE OF S'LY EXTENSION OF LAKESHORE DR
A DISTANCE OF 140 FEET, TH E 72.55 FT, TH NORTH 140 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, also known as
809 W. Ludington Ave.

David Miller, Mason County Growth Alliance, said that his purpose with the Growth Alliance was to attract business and to
help businesses that are already here. He stated that he appreciated the opportunity to address the Planning Commission and
would like to congratulate them on the good work on the new condo projects. He said that he talked to Mr. Hazard about
his proposed project and feels that it is important to the community to offer more opportunity, as we see more condos, to the
people coming to visit or move here. He said that the money that Mr. Hazard is willing to invest would be very beneficial
to the community.

Jeanne Gibson, property owner of 809 W. Ludington Ave., said that her and her partners feel that it is important to keep the
property with local ownership. She feels that it would be a good project for the community.

Close Public Hearing
Chairman Olmstead asked if there were any conflicts of interest.

Commissioner Gamble said that he owned the property adjacent to the property being discussed. He stated that he felt he
would approach his responsibility as a Planning Commissioner in a very professional way. His only concerns would be the
issues that the text committee has already addressed regarding the zoning as a whole (M-R District). Unless the City
Attorney feels that | should withdraw, | do not feel that | have a conflict of interest. Chairman Olmstead stated that Mrs.
Gamble submitted a letter to the Commission that was not in favor of the project. Commissioner Gamble said that parking
was the issue. There was nothing against the business. City Attorney Anderson said that the City’s Conflict of Interest





Planning Commission Minutes

February 6, 2007

Page 3

ordinance accepts this type of situation because we are a small community. The ordinance deals with financial conflicts of
interest. He stated that he talked to Commissioner Gamble prior to the meeting and does not feel that this is a conflict.

Doug Shoup, 707 E. Ludington Ave., addressed the Commissioners. He said that Jeanne Gibson did think that
Commissioner Gamble had a financial interest. Apparently, Commissioner Gamble attempted to buy the property within
the last year. The Commission may want to re-consider him acting on this issue. Jeanne Gibson said that whether
Commissioner Gamble was for or against the project, she feel that there is a conflict.

Commissioner Nekola said that they were looking at text for the whole zone, not just this property. Chairman Olmstead
stated that in a small community it is hard to avoid the appearance of an impropriety because we know everyone. He said
that he does not feel that there is a conflict with this issue. This is a city-wide issue, not just for Hal Hazzard and Judy
Emlaw’s project.

Chairman Olmstead read correspondence received from Sharon Snyder regarding the parking issue. Ms. Snyder said that if
the parking issue could be resolved, the sale of the property would be a win-win situation, not only for the buyers and
sellers, but for the neighborhood and the city.

Chairman Olmstead explained that the proposal was for personal services to be allowed in the M-R district. At this time,
there is nothing in the ordinance that would allow that type of use.

Commissioner Holman reported that the text committee did meet and is proposing language to define personal service
establishments. She read the proposed changes to Articles 200.2, 400.5, 400.8, 400.12, and 900.2.

Chairman Olmstead stated that this was a good example of how one request can really create complications and you cannot
really act on a request for a specific piece of property without considering the entire ordinance. It is also a good example of
how zoning districts are constantly changing.  Chairman Olmstead went through each section of the ordinance that was
proposed to be changed. He explained what would be changed and the reason for it.

Commissioner Gamble asked why small retail business was being removed from Limited Commercial permitted uses.
Attorney Anderson explained that the language was put in the ordinance in 1984. It was basically for retail uses that were
serving the principal use, such as a coffee shop. In reality, the use never came up. The ordinance has been misunderstood
and it has caused a lot of misunderstanding. Commissioner Gamble asked why self service was being removed from the
CBD. Chairman Olmstead explained that machines would be there whether they are self serve or not.

A public hearing will be set in March for the proposed text changes to the ordinance.

Hal Hazzard spoke to the Commission. He said that these people want to sell this property. The situation was they want to
be in by May. This keeps getting put off. The application was made out some time in October and the last meeting was
cancelled. My feeling is that you have had two months to sort through this. Is there something that could be done like spot
zoning for this property. Commissioner Olmstead told Mr. Hazzard that what has happened is a request that the
Commission cannot grant without changing the ordinance and you cannot change the ordinance without going through the
proper steps. We were not cancelled last month. We had three new members coming in last month. Mr. Hazzard asked if a
variance could be granted to just that property. Commissioner Olmstead said that it would be spot zoning and that was a not
done. He said that all they can do is recommend the changes to City Council. If the changes are approved, Mr. Hazzard
would need to apply for a special land use.

The recording secretary said that the public hearing for the text changes could be noticed for the March meeting. If
approved, it would be sent to City Council for two readings. If the City Council approved them, the effective date would be
twenty days later. The special land use hearing could be scheduled for April. Commissioner Nekola stated that the special
land use hearing would be the time to have all other issues taken care of, such as the parking.

Membrane Covered Structures:

Commissioner Holman reported that the text committee met on proposed changes to Article 500.17, Membrane Covered
Structures. She read the proposed change: No structure consisting of a frame covered by a membrane, including but not
limited to eanvas-er-plastic-may-be-erected-or-used-for-purpeses-of-storage—plastic, canvas, sheet or corrugated metal, may
be erected except for temporary purposes as part of a temporary use approved per section 500.14:2, except for the purposes
of this article, the time limit is up to five (5) days with a limit of three (3) occurrences per year. Awnings, as defined by the
Michigan Building Code, are not considered membrane covered structures. Temporary small tents for camping, recreation,
cold frames for gardening, seasonal shades over patios or decks, or similar items are also not considered membrane
covered structures.






Planning Commission Minutes

February 6, 2007

Page 4

Chairman Olmstead said that the reason for the change was problems with enforcement of such structures and to be more
definitive in what is allowed.

A public hearing will be set in March for the proposed changes.

Site Plan Review Committee:

Commissioner Holman reported that the text committee met on proposed changes to Section 1100.2:2, Site Plan Review
Committee. The current text called for the Chairman of the Planning Commission and one other member to be part of the
Site Plan Review Committee. Because of the inconvenience of attending all site plan reviews, the proposed text would read
any two members of the Commission would attend.

A public hearing will be set in March for the proposed changes.

Rules of Procedure:

Chairman Olmstead asked that the Commissioners read the Rules of Procedure and note any changes or madifications that
they would like to see. He asked that the text committee look at section six, Site Plan Review, and change 6.1 that requires
the chairperson to attend site plans. Any new Rules of Procedure could be adopted at the March meeting.

Comprehensive Plan:
No report

NEW BUSINESS:
Chairman Olmstead presented Tom Coleman with a certificate of appreciation for his years of service on the Planning
Commission.

SITE PLAN REVIEW REPORT:

Commissioner Holman reported that a site plan review was held on January 30, 2007 at the City Municipal Building for the review
of a proposed 9,400 square foot addition and the relocation of the existing truck maintenance building. The site plan was
unanimously approved with the following conditions:

Properly restore slopes and borrow area

Repair aggregate surface as required

Correct plan key

Provide sumps on all catch basins

Tie in roof drains to catch basin on relocated building

Provide grade changes

oupwdRE

COMMISSIONER’S COMMENTS:

Chairman Olmstead told the Commissioners that this was a new item on the agenda. This is where the Commissioners will set short-
term goals or propose work projects and discuss other issues and plans for the City. He would like to challenge them to come up
with some different ideas. He said that his goal is to keep the lights on the trees in the downtown area on year round.

Commissioner Holman said that Tom Coleman had the idea to plant beach grass on the west end of Ludington Ave. She said that
Tom would see when he could get the plants, she would get the money and Joe will get the planting crew.

Chairman Olmstead gave the Commissioners a copy of the Open Meetings Act.

Commissioner Nekola commented that when new buildings are going up, the Site Plan Review Committee should make sure that
there was accessibility for the Dial-A-Ride buses. Commissioner Holman stated that she had a list of the different bus sizes.

Commissioner Moloney requested that he attend the April 12" Site Plan training seminar. He also said that he would continue
working on his adhoc assignment with rental registration.

COMMENTS AND COMMUNICATIONS:

ADJOURNMENT:
The meeting was adjourned at 8:15 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,
Carol Ann Foote, Recording Secretary

Clay Olmstead, Chairperson






CITY OF LUDINGTON
PLANNING COMMISSION
MINUTES 03/06/07

A meeting of the Ludington Planning Commission was held on March 6, 2007. The meeting was held at the Ludington
Municipal Building, 400 S. Harrison St., Ludington, Ml and was called to order at 7:05 p.m. by Mike Nekola, Vice-
Chairperson.

ROLL CALL: The roll call showed the following results:
Present: Kaye Holman, Clay Olmstead, Joe Moloney, Chris Gamble, Mike Nekola, Alan Neushwander, Robert Garrett.

Absent: Bill Loforte and Joe Moloney (excused)

Also Present: Recording Secretary, Carol Ann Foote, City Manager, John Shay and City Attorney, Roger Anderson.
AGENDA APPROVAL.:

Unfinished business sections 7a., 7b., and 7c. was moved to the public hearing section of the agenda. Commissioner

Holman made a motion to approve the agenda, as amended, seconded by Commissioner Pontz. Motion carried
unanimously.

PUBLIC COMMENTS:

Colleen Avidsian, 7043 W. Windamere, told the Commissioners that she is a nurse and massage therapist and has worked
with Judy Emlaw for the last ten years. She said that she was speaking on Judy’s behalf. She is a wonderful person and
brings a lot of integrity to what she does. Her business would be a real asset to the community.

Close public hearing.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:
Commissioner Holman made a motion to approve the minutes of the February 6, 2007 meeting, seconded by Commissioner
Neushwander. Motion carried unanimously.

PUBLIC HEARINGS:
Open public hearing

Commissioner Garrett asked to be excused from discussion due to conflict of interest.

a. To consider proposed text changes to the Ludington Zoning Ordinance #23-00, in order to define Personal Service
Establishments, Article 200.2, Definitions, Section 200.2:8 (3).

Commissioner Holman told the Commissioners that proposed changes to Section 900.2 would specifically point out that
personal service establishments would be allowed by special land use in the Motel-Resort District fronting Ludington Ave.
only.

Commissioner Holman read the proposed text: PERSONAL SERVICE ESTABLISHMENTS: An establishment primarily
engaged in providing services involving the care of a person or his or her goods or apparel, but not including a tattoo parlor,
piercing parlor or Adult Personal Service Establishments as defined in Section 500.18:3.

Commissioner Holman made a motion to recommend to City Council to approve text changes to Article 200.2, Definitions,
Section 200.2:8(3), to define Personal Service Establishments, seconded by Commissioner Neushwander. Motion carried.

Chairman Olmstead arrived at 7:15 p.m. Vice-Chairman Nekola turned the meeting over to Chairman Olmstead.

b. To consider proposed text changes to the Ludington Zoning Ordinance #23-00, Article 400.5, Limited Commercial
District, Section 400.5:2 (3), Permitted Principal Uses in order to allow Personal Service Establishments as a
permitted principal use in that district.

Commissioner Holman made a motion to recommend to City Council to approve text changes to Article 400.5, Limited
Commercial District, Section 400.5:2(3), Permitted Principal Uses, in order to allow Personal Service Establishments as a
Permitted Principal Use in that district, seconded by Commissioner Neushwander. Motion carried.





Planning Commission Minutes
March 6, 2007
Page 2

C. To consider proposed text changes to the Ludington Zoning Ordinance #23-00, Article 400.8, Central Business
District, Section 400.8:2 (3), Permitted Principal Uses in order to allow Personal Service Establishments as a
permitted principal use in that district.

Commissioner Holman made a motion to recommend to City Council to approve text changes to Article 400.8, Central
Business District, Section 400.8:2(3), Permitted Principal Uses, in order to allow Personal Service Establishments as a
Permitted Principal Use in that district, seconded by Commissioner Neushwander. Motion carried.

d. To consider proposed text changes to the Ludington Zoning Ordinance #23-00, Article 400.12, Motel-Resort
District, Section 400.12:4 (4), Special Land Uses in order to allow Personal Service Establishments as a Special
Land Use in that district.

Commissioner Holman made a motion to recommend to City Council to approve text changes to Article 400.12, Motel-
Resort District, Section 400.12:4 (4) Special Land Uses, in order to allow Personal Service Establishments as a Special
Land Use in that district, seconded by Commissioner Neushwander.

Commissioner Pontz asked if it was really in the best interest of the City to rezone that property when there are so many
vacant buildings in the commercial district that could be used for personal services. Chairman Olmstead explained that the
proposal was not a rezoning. They were purposing text changes to allow that type of use in the Motel Resort District with a
special land use.

Motion carried unanimously.

e. To consider proposed text changes to the Ludington Zoning Ordinance #23-00, Article 900.2, General Provisions,
in order to establish Special Land Use standards for Personal Service Establishments in the Motel-Resort
District.
Commissioner Holman read the proposed changes: Section 900.3:29 Personal Service Establishment:
A personal service establishment may be located in the M-R district under the following conditions:
(1) The personal service establishment shall be considered for only those properties zoned M-R fronting on
Ludington Avenue.
(2) Such uses shall be of a nature which does not cause excessive noise, fumes, odor, vibrations, or any other
similar impact on neighboring uses.
(3) The Planning Commission may impose further conditions to ensure the compatibility of the use with adjacent
properties in consideration of the character of the district or neighboring districts.
(4) That undue traffic congestion will not result and curb cuts comply with the US-10/Ludington Avenue Access
Management Plan.
(5) That the Planning commission finds that such a use will not unduly injure the character or value of surrounding
properties.
(6) That parking conforms to Chapter VII, in addition to the following:
a. Section 700.2:4 shall not apply to personal service establishments;
b. Shared parking shall not be permitted; and
c. Parking for any personal service establishment with other uses in the same building shall be cumulative
such that the total number of spaces for each use is provided.

Commissioner Holman made a motion to recommend to City Council to approve text changes to Article 900.2, General
Provisions, to add Section 900.3:29, Personal Service Establishments, in order to establish Special Land Use standards for
Personal Service Establishments in the Motel-Resort district, seconded by Commissioner Neushwander. Motion carried
unanimously.

f. To consider proposed text changes to the Ludington Zoning Ordinance #23-00, Article 500.17, Membrane
Covered Structures, in order to clearly define the definition of a membrane covered structure.

Commissioner Holman read the proposed changes: No structure consisting of a frame covered by a membrane,
including but not limited to plastic, canvas, sheet or corrugated metal, may be erected except for temporary purposes as part
of a temporary use approved per section 500.14:2, except for the purposes of this article, the time limit is up to five (5)
consecutive days with a limit of three (3) occurrences per year. Awnings, as defined by the Michigan Building Code, are
not considered membrane covered structures. Temporary small tents for camping, recreation, cold frames for gardening,
seasonal shades over patios or decks, or similar items are also not considered membrane covered structures.





Planning Commission Minutes
March 6, 2007
Page 3

Commissioner Nekola asked if this ordinance would cover something like a greenhouse being used for storage. Roger
Anderson said that if a structure was not being used as the ordinance intended, the City would enforce it.

Commissioner Holman made a motion to recommend to City Council to approve text changes to Article 500.17, Membrane
Covered Structures, in order to clearly define the definition of a membrane covered structure, seconded by Commissioner
Pontz. Motion carried unanimously.

g. To consider proposed text changes to the Ludington Zoning Ordinance #23-00, Section 1100.2:2 (2), Site Plan
Review Committee, in order to change the composition of the Committee.

Commissioner Holman read the proposed changes: The Site Plan Review Committee shall be composed of two members of
the Planning Commission, the City Manager, Department Heads as determined by the City Manager and the Building
Inspector.

Commissioner Holman made a motion to recommend to City Council to approve text changes to Section 1100.2:2 (2), Site
Plan Review Committee, in order to change the composition of the Committee, seconded by Commissioner Neushwander.

Commissioner Garrett asked what two members would be asked to go to site plan review meetings. Commissioner Holman
said that Carol Foote would call the two members. Commissioner Gamble asked if there was more than one review, would
you be required to go to all of them. Chairman Olmstead said that it would make sense to follow through. The intent of the
change is to allow more members to attend these meetings. Commissioner Holman stated that more than two members
could attend. Commissioner Nekola suggested that everyone be notified.

Motion carried unanimously.

UNFINISHED BUSINESS:

Rules of Procedure:

Chairman Olmstead said that the Text Committee was looking at Rules of Procedure to change section 6.1 which requires
the Chair to convene and conduct the site plan reviews. Commissioner Holman reported that the Text Committee had
reviewed the Rules of Procedures and noted possible changes to sections 3.3, special meetings, 6.1 and 6.2. Chairman
Olmstead asked that something be drafted and submitted in April.

Comprehensive Plan:

Commissioner Garrett told the Commission that there were approximately fifteen empty buildings in the James St. area. He
mentioned that he knew of a community that helped the storeowners spruce up the store fronts. Corporations took the
windows and displayed their goods in them. He suggested that the Commission work with the DDA and do something to
enhance the look of the town. It would enhance the look of the town. Commissioner Pontz stated that grants are available.
Commissioner Holman said that she would bring that issue up at the Downtown Ludington Board meeting. Chairman
Olmstead suggested that it could be a short term goal.

Commissioner Holman told the Commissioners that there were plans to paint the ticket booth on Loomis St. Dune grass
will be purchased and planted on April 20 and 21. She encouraged the other Commissioners to get involved.

Commissioner Garrett reported that he sent the City Council recommendations and ideas developed by the Planning
Commission sub-committee on parks with the help of consultants and the community. This letter was sent on November 5,
2007 and Commissioner Garrett has not had a response. He recommended following up on the issue with the Council.

Commissioner Nekola said that he and Joe Moloney were still interested in working on neighborhood projects and were
waiting for the new Community Development Director to begin her job at the City. He said that if anyone else was
interested in serving on this committee to let him know. Commissioner Pontz expressed interest in this committee.

Chairman Olmstead stated that he would like to see goal proposals and a “report card” of the progress that has been made.

NEW BUSINESS:

Commissioner Nekola announced a training seminar would be held on April 24 at 5:30 p.m. Williams and Works would be
presenting this seminar. Chairman Olmstead emphasized that this would be a very significant training session and
encouraged everyone to attend.






Planning Commission Minutes
March 6, 2007
Page 4

SITE PLAN REVIEW REPORT:

Commissioner Holman reported a site plan review was held on February 8, 2007 for a proposed 4,000 sq. ft. addition for ASI
Environmental, 410 E. Dowland St. The site plan was unanimously approved with the condition that the water/oil separator plan be
approved by the Wastewater Treatment Plant Supervisor.

COMMISSIONER’S COMMENTS:
Chairman Olmstead reminded the Commissioners that according to the Open Meetings Act, there cannot be more than four
commissioners together in one place without public notice.

Chairman Olmstead stated that the City Commission did not accept “lay downs”, or late additions to the agenda. He said that
everything should be submitted in packet.

Commissioner Holman said that Tom Coleman had the idea to plant beach grass on the west end of Ludington Ave. She said that
Tom would see when he could get the plants, she would get the money and Joe will get the planting crew.

COMMENTS AND COMMUNICATIONS:

ADJOURNMENT:
The meeting was adjourned at 8:05 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,
Carol Ann Foote, Recording Secretary

Clay Olmstead, Chairperson






CITY OF LUDINGTON
PLANNING COMMSION
MINUTES 4/10/2007

A meeting of the Ludington Planning Commission was held on Tuesday, April 10, 2007. The meeting was held at the Ludington
Municipal Building, 400 S. Harrison St., Ludington, MI and was called to order at 7:03p.m.

ROLL CALL: The roll call showed the following results:
Present: Robert Garrett, Joe Moloney, Kaye Holman, Clay Olmstead, Bill Loforte, Chris Gamble, and Chris Pontz.

Absent: Mike Nekola and Alan Neushwander (excused)
Also Present: Recording Secretary Rachelle Enbody and City Attorney Roger Anderson.

AGENDA APPROVAL.:
Commissioner Holman made a motion to approve the agenda, seconded by Commissioner Moloney. Motion carried unanimously.

PUBLIC COMMENTS:
Chairman Olmstead opened the meeting for public comments and asked that if anyone had comments in regards to the public hearing,












CITY OF LUDINGTON
PLANNING COMMSION
MINUTES 05/01/07

A meeting of the Ludington Planning Commission was held on Tuesday, May 1, 2007. The meeting was held at the Ludington
Municipal Building, 400 S. Harrison St., Ludington, Ml and was called to order at 7:00 p.m. by Clay Olmstead, Chairperson.

ROLL CALL: The roll call showed the following results:
Present: Robert Garrett, Joe Moloney, Kaye Holman, Clay Olmstead, Bill Loforte, Chris Gamble, Mike Nekola and Chris Pontz.

Absent: Alan Neushwander (excused)
Also Present: Recording Secretary Carol Ann Foote and City Attorney Roger Anderson.

AGENDA APPROVAL.:
Commissioner Holman made a motion to approve the agenda, seconded by Commissioner Garrett. Motion carried unanimously.

PUBLIC COMMENTS:
No public comments.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:
Commissioner Moloney made a motion to approve the minutes, as written, seconded by Commissioner Holman. Motion carried
unanimously.

PUBLIC HEARINGS:
Open Public Hearing

To consider a request from Creek Bed, LLC for a special land use for transient rentals of condominiums in accordance with the City of
Ludington Zoning Ordinance #23-00, Section 500.19, at the following described property: ORIGINAL PLAT LOTS 6 & 7 BLOCK
27, also known as 222 W. Ludington Ave.

Bob Neal, 6011 S. Birchwood Dr., told the Commissioners that his request was pretty self-explanatory. There are three condominium
units above the Best Choice Market that he would like to have available as transient rentals. There would also be the Chamber of
Commerce tourist center and the Artist Market.

Anthony Barnard, Candlelight Bed and Breakfast, said that he was representing the Ludington Bed and Breakfast Association. He
stated that they were trying to restore the historical and cultural aspects of downtown. Renting these condos on a daily basis is not
good. He said that he owned condos in another state and they have a 30 day minimum rental. He said this project was not in the best
interest of Ludington. Commissioner Garrett asked how this project relates to the historical aspect of Ludington. Mr. Barnard stated
that the Ludington B & Bs were 100 year old houses and they promote the history of Ludington, as opposed to having one night
rentals.

Fran Habermehl, 711 W. Filer, stated that she owned several properties and a condominium at 304 S. Ferry St. She said, as much as
she likes Bob Neal and Kaye Neal, she is against this request. 1f the condominium was built for year round use, perfect. She said that
it would be good for business. She said that right now the economy stinks and the City is not helping when there are no customers.
She said that she was paying higher taxes. If the City is helping one, they should help all. She stated that she loves Ludington and is
proud of the downtown. She is not in favor of this proposal.

Close Public Hearing

Chairman Olmstead said that in the last few years they had been encouraging people to locate in the downtown area. Residential is
not allowed on the first floor in the Central Business District. Most of the other condo projects in town have already asked for
transient rentals. The Planning Commission enacted Transient Rentals in 2005. The project has to satisfy all of the standards before
approval.

Commissioner Nekola reported that the committee met and recommended the approval of the special land use.





Commissioner Nekola made a motion to approve the special land use to Creekbed, LLC, in accordance with Section 500.9, Transient
Rentals of a Dwelling, at 222 W. Ludington Ave., Lots 6 and 7, Block 127 as it meets standards 1-6 of Section 900.2:6.





NEW BUSINESS:
None

SITE PLAN REVIEW REPORT:
None

COMMISSIONERS’ COMMENTS AND COMMUNICATIONS:
Commissioner Gamble asked what the status was on the text for Membrane Covered Structures. Commissioner Holman said that the
proposed text change went to City Council and was referred back to committee.

Commissioner Holman suggested that Commissioners go to other Commission meetings such as Hamlin Township, Pere Marquette
Township and Mason County. She would like to get a list of the different meetings and have Commissioners sign up for them. She
said that they could invite other Commissioners to their meetings. Commissioner Nekola said that a few years ago, there was an
Ex-officio member that attended the County meetings and reported back to the Commission. He stated that the County may be open
to that again.

ADJOURNMENT:
Moved by Commissioner Moloney, seconded by Commissioner Pontz, to adjourn the meeting at 7:45 p.m. Motion carried.

Respectfully submitted,
Carol Ann Foote, Recording Secretary

Clay Olmstead, Chairperson






CITY OF LUDINGTON
PLANNING COMMSION
MINUTES 06/05/07

A meeting of the Ludington Planning Commission was held on Tuesday, June 5, 2007. The meeting was held at the Ludington
Municipal Building, 400 S. Harrison St., Ludington, Ml and was called to order at 7:00 p.m. by Clay Olmstead, Chairperson.

ROLL CALL: The roll call showed the following results:
Present: Robert Garrett, Joe Moloney, Kaye Holman, Clay Olmstead, Bill Loforte, Chris Gamble, Mike Nekola and Chris Pontz.

Absent;
Also Present: Recording Secretary Carol Ann Foote, City Attorney Roger Anderson, and City Manager John Shay.
AGENDA APPROVAL:

Commissioner Holman made a motion to approve the agenda with the addition of Dog Ordinance under Commissioner’s Comments,
seconded by Commissioner Nekola. Motion carried unanimously.

PUBLIC COMMENTS:
No public comments.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:
Commissioner Holman made a motion to approve the minutes, as written, seconded by Commissioner Moloney. Motion carried
unanimously.

PUBLIC HEARINGS:
Open Public Hearing

To consider a request from Dave Johnson for a special land use for residential use above the first floor in the Central
Business District at the following described property: ORIGINAL PLAT E 26 FT OF W 34 FT OF LOT 4 BLOCK 34,
also known as 123 W. Ludington Ave.

Dave Johnson, 5244 W. Decker Rd., purchased the building at 123 W. Ludington Ave. Gregory’s flower shop has moved
into the retail space. Mr. Johnson said that the building had wasted space. At one time, it was a bank building. Then a
back section was added. The front of the building, at sidewalk level, is retail and up a flight to the upper elevation. Mr.
Johnson stated that he worked for an engineering firm. He said that in the state, and Ludington too, cities were working
for more residential use in downtown areas. That is why MSHDA funds are available. He said that this building could
not make it on just retail. The residential component adds dimension. The building has one window and he would like to
add more. Mr. Johnson asked the Commission to consider the middle and upper levels as not being grade. There is a 40
inch rise. Chairman Olmstead asked about the stairs. Mr. Johnson said that it was about 3 % ft. He said that there was
approximately 70 ft. into retail before it goes into the second story. The building was built in 1890 and is a well built
building with no structural issues. He explained that there was a set of common stairs with deeded access. Commissioner
Moloney asked what the garden level was. Mr. Johnson explained that the downstairs had been finished off for office
space. There are separate entries for the garden and upper levels. Commissioner Holman stated that according to our
ordinance, the garden level would be the basement. Commissioner Moloney asked about MSHDA. Mr. Johnson said that
he had an application in. He said he was attempting grants for all three levels. He said that Heather Loney was very
active on the grants.

Chairman Olmstead asked Attorney Anderson his interpretation of the ordinance. Attorney Anderson said that, in his
opinion, the first level of the building was meant to be retail. He does not believe that the middle is above the first floor.
The second floor was not for retail. When the Granary was in that building, there was retail on the first floor. He said that
the Commission could consider changing the Ordinance, but he feels that there would be a considerable number of
buildings downtown that would be affected. Chairman Olmstead stated that the Commission was not obligated to accept
the opinion of the City Attorney, but they do have the ability to recommend a change to City Council.

Tom Coleman, 501 N. Ferry, read the definition of grade from the ordinance. When the ordinance was changed,
residential was not allowed downtown. It was meant to bring more people downtown, not to the detriment of the
downtown.





June 5, 2007
Planning Commission Meeting

Commissioner Pontz stated that they need to look at the importance of residential downtown. He said that they may want
to look at the ordinance. Commissioner Nekola said that it was one thing to look at the ordinance, but right now it is clear
what needs to be done. We cannot go against what we have now. This is a living document and we need to deal tonight
with what we have. Commissioner Moloney asked what options they had in this case in regards to conditions placed.
Chairman Olmstead said that they could not supersede the ordinance. The only other thing they could do would be amend
the zoning ordinance. Commissioner Garrett stated that this was a matter of interpretation. There is a middle floor and an
upper floor.

Dave Johnson said that he was not clear with the meaning of grade. Chairman Olmstead explained how grade
measurements were determined.

The recording secretary reported forty-eight notices were sent with no response.

Commissioner Nekola reported that the committee met and found that the top floor met the requirements of the special
land use.

Commissioner Nekola made a motion to approve the special land use for residential use above the floor of the Central
Business District in accordance with Section 400.8:4, Special Land Uses, of the City of Ludington Zoning Ordinance #23-
00 for the top floor of the following described property, ORIGINAL PLAT E 26 FT OF W 34 FT OF LOT 4 BLOCK 34,
also known as 123 W. Ludington Ave., seconded by Commissioner Holman. Motion carried unanimously.

To consider a request by Korrie Hutchinson for a special land use to operate a group day care home in a residential district
at the following described property: ADDITION NO. 2 LOT 6 BLOCK 109, also known as 401 Fifth St. Group Daycare
is defined as: “Group Day Care Home” means a private home in which more than 6 but not more than 12 minor children
are given care and supervision for periods of less than 24 hours a day unattended by a parent or legal guardian, except
children related to an adult member of the family by blood, marriage, or adoption. Group day care home includes a home
in which care is given to an unrelated minor child for more than 4 weeks during a calendar year.

The recording secretary reported that she sent forty-eight notices and had two responses. She read a letter from Ron
Soberalski, in favor and one from Gary Cichon that was against the request.

Korrie Hutchinson, 401 Fifth St., told the Commission that she was licensed in March to operate a day care facility with a
maximum capacity of twelve. Mrs. Barber, Korrie’s mother, said that the licensing has been a long procedure. She said
the more business Ludington gets, the more daycare is needed. It is close to school and easy to get to.

Commissioner Gamble asked if there was going to be any fencing changes. Ms. Hutchinson stated that a letter from her
state supervisor said that she does not need a fence unless she was by a body of water. Commissioner Loforte asked about
hours of operation. Ms. Hutchinson said she would be open from 6 a.m. until 6 p.m. Monday through Friday.

Close public hearing.

Commissioner Nekola read Section 900.3:28, Group Day Care Home, of the ordinance. He asked Attorney Anderson
about State regulations regarding the fencing issue. Attorney Anderson told the Commissioners that Williams and Works
had just worked on the language for day care facilities. He said that he felt sure the City could place regulations on
facilities such as group day care. Commissioner Garrett said that the state probably did not require a fence from a
licensing point of view. Commissioner Nekola said that where the 4 ft. fence was now, there needs to be a 6 ft. The other
sides need to be 4ft. He asked if she could be given ninety days to put up the fence. Commissioner Olmstead stated that
she could be given time to meet the fence requirements without losing what she already has.

Commissioner Nekola made a motion to approve the special land use request for a group day care under the provisions of
Section 900.3:28 of the City of Ludington Zoning Ordinance #23-00 with the condition that the fence around the property
shall meet the requirements of 900.3:28 (2) at the following described property: ADDITION NO. 2 LOT 6 BLOCK 109,
also known as 401 Fifth St., seconded by Commissioner Garrett. Motion carried unanimously.





June 5, 2007
Planning Commission Meeting

UNFINISHED BUSINESS;

Rules of Procedure:
Commissioner Holman reported that the text change would be presented at the July meeting.

Comprehensive Plan:
Commissioner Garrett reported that the parks initiative was moving forward and would be presented to the City Council soon.

Rental Registration:

Commissioner Moloney reported that Tom Durkee with MSHDA would be doing a presentation on 6/26/07. Amy Ridge, who deals
with rental registration directly, will be ask how formal the process has to be to get MSHDA money. He stated that Heather Loney hit
the ground running with the grants.

Commissioner Holman reported that the Cal DeKuiper said that they could use as many bike racks as the want during the summer.
She said that there were very few downtown and possible places would be Daily News, fire station, post office, Kiwanas, boat launch
and Waterfront Park.

Commissioner Holman said that Membrane Covered Structures would be presented in July.

NEW BUSINESS:
None

SITE PLAN REVIEW REPORT:
Commissioner Holman reported that site plan reviews were held on May 21 and 29 for a proposed parking lot at 809 W. Ludington
Ave. The plan was approved for fifteen parking spots.

Commissioner Holman reported that a site plan review was held on May 21 for a proposed parking lot at 305 W. Ludington Ave. The
plan was approved with conditions.

COMMISSIONERS” COMMENTS AND COMMUNICATIONS:

Animal Ordinance: Commissioner Nekola suggested that the Commission look at an animal ordinance. He said that the City of
Scottville had adopted one. He stated that some cities do not allow cats off of the property. Chairman Olmstead said that it would
need to be referred to the text committee.

Chairman Olmstead told the Commission that he researched the reason the city has a planning commission. He found the answer in
the Ludington City Charter and recommended the Commissioners to obtain a copy of it.

Commissioner Garrett reported that the May 22 edition of the Detroit Free Press had the results of the travel editor’s nominations for
the best beach in Michigan. He said that Ludington won out. Commissioner Pontz said the it was also in the Chicago Tribune.

ADJOURNMENT:
The meeting adjourned at 8:10 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,
Carol Ann Foote, Recording Secretary

Clay Olmstead, Chairperson






CITY OF LUDINGTON
PLANNING COMMSION
MINUTES 07/03/07

A meeting of the Ludington Planning Commission was held on Tuesday, July 3, 2007. The meeting was held at the Ludington
Municipal Building, 400 S. Harrison St., Ludington, Ml and was called to order at 7:00 p.m. by Clay Olmstead, Chairperson.

ROLL CALL: The roll call showed the following results:
Present: Robert Garrett, Kaye Holman, Clay Olmstead, Bill Loforte, Chris Gamble, Mike Nekola, Chris Pontz and Gary Schnitker

Absent: Joe Moloney
Also Present: Recording Secretary Carol Ann Foote, and City Manager John Shay.

AGENDA APPROVAL.:
Commissioner Holman made a motion to approve the agenda seconded by Commissioner Garrett. Motion carried unanimously.

PUBLIC COMMENTS:
No public comments.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:
Commissioner Nekola made a motion to approve the minutes, as written, seconded by Commissioner Holman. Motion carried
unanimously.

PUBLIC HEARINGS:
Open Public Hearing

To consider a request from Mason County District Library and the City of Ludington to rezone the following described property
from Parking (P) to Government Service District (G1) in order to expand the Ludington Library: ORIGINAL PLAT N 1/2 OF LOT
1 BLOCK 24, also known as 210 E. Court St. and ORIGINAL PLAT LOT 10 & E1/20FLOT9,S1/20FLOT1&S1/20FE
33 FT OF LOT 2 AND ADJACENT VACATED ALLEY BLOCK 24, also known as 217 E. Ludington Ave.

Bob Dixon, Director of the Mason County Library, explained that there were libraries in Ludington and Scottville and that they would
like to expand the Ludington branch. Approximately five years ago, they bought 210 E. Court St. with the idea of expansion. The
parcel is now zoned Parking District and they would like to have it zoned Government Service District. The existing library building
is owned by the City of Ludington and the expansion will be owned by the City. The existing library is very crowded and the need for
expansion is there. Commissioner Schnitker asked if the expansion would be all to the back of the existing building. Mr. Dixon said
that it would be to the back with the roof matching the 1976 expansion. They will maintain the historic portion of the building and
make service areas on two levels. The lower level will be a meeting room and the upper level will be a kid’s room. Commissioner
Holman asked if the angle parking by the house will remain there. Mr. Dixon said that there would be no change in parking.
Commissioner Pontz asked about the relocation of the current tenants at 210 E. Court. Mr. Dixon said that they are going to give them
plenty of time to relocate.

Ivan Anthony, 4131 Meisenheimer Rd., told the Commission that he had served on the board for ten years and he is amazed with the

children’s use. He said that the program is unbelievable. He stated that Scottville also had a great program. It is a good thing for the
County. They are on the move. Commissioner Schnitker asked if there was any response from the neighbors. Mr. Anthony said that
he had not heard anything negative.

Marilyn Bannon, 305 N. Staffon, serves as the Library Board chairperson. She is a retired teacher and her interest is for children. She
stated that the library is a jewel for the community. She urged the Commission to help them find the best zoning. She said that an
addition would help improve services and would be a win, win situation.

Dick Powell, 308 E. Foster, said that he was representing the Community Church, 109 N. Harrison St. He feels that this would be a
win, win situation. He stated that the City has the west half of the parking and lets the church use it on Sundays. He had two requests.
One, that if anything would affect the parking, please keep him and the church informed. Two, consider repaving the west side of the
parking lot instead of re-patching patches.

Close public hearing.

Chairman Olmstead reported that the zoning sub committee did meet and reviewed the zoning request. The area is now zoned Parking
and Government Service District, so this would not be considered spot zoning.





July 3, 2007
Planning Commission Meeting

Chairman Olmstead made a motion to recommend to City Council the rezoning of ORIGINAL PLAT N 1/2 OF LOT 1 BLOCK
24, also known as 210 E. Court St. and ORIGINAL PLAT LOT 10 & E 1/2 OF LOT 9,S1/2 OF LOT 1 & S1/2 OF E 33 FT OF
LOT 2 AND ADJACENT VACATED ALLEY BLOCK 24, also known as 217 E. Ludington Ave. from Parking (P) to Government
Service District (G-1), seconded by Commissioner Gamble. Motion carried unanimously.

UNFINISHED BUSINESS:

Rules of Procedure:
Commissioner Holman made a motion to accept the Rules of Procedure, as amended, seconded by Commissioner Nekola. Motion
carried unanimously.

Comprehensive Plan:
Commissioner Garrett reported that he met with the parks committee and there were some changes made to the proposal. The
amended proposal will be presented to City Council on July 9, 2007.

Rental Registration:
No Report

Membrane Covered Structures:
Commissioner Holman said that text for membrane structures would be sent back to City Council. She explained that the initial
question was with the definition. The word “metal” had been taken out.

Commissioner Holman made a motion to recommend to City Council the approval of changes to Ludington Zoning Ordinance, #23-
00, Article 500.17, Membrane Covered Structures, seconded by Commissioner Nekola.

Commissioner Gamble asked what the City Council’s objection was. Commissioner Holman said that “metal frames” had been
included in the definition, but had since been taken out. Commissioner Gamble asked if this text would allow the half round structures
such as a Quonset hut. Commissioner Holman stated that if it had fabric, it would be disallowed. Commissioner Schnitker asked
about tarps over junk cars. Carol Foote said that if there was a car that did not have current plates, the Ludington Police Department
would tag it to be moved. If someone has a vehicle that was current with a cover on it, that would not fall under the category
“membrane structure”.

Motion carried unanimously.

NEW BUSINESS:
None

SITE PLAN REVIEW REPORT:
None

COMMISSIONERS’ COMMENTS AND COMMUNICATIONS:

Chairman Olmstead said that with the Fourth of July upon us, he had been reflecting on freedom. He said that he would like to give
his personal thanks to the armed forces and their families for the sacrifices they make. He also thanked all of our rescue workers,
police department, fire department and emergency responders for giving so generously of their life and time to make our lives safer
and richer.

ADJOURNMENT:
The meeting adjourned at 7:35 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,
Carol Ann Foote, Recording Secretary

Clay Olmstead, Chairperson






CITY OF LUDINGTON
PLANNING COMMSION
MINUTES 08/07/07

A meeting of the Ludington Planning Commission was held on Tuesday, August 7, 2007. The meeting was held at the Ludington
Municipal Building, 400 S. Harrison St., Ludington, Ml and was called to order at 7:00 p.m. by Clay Olmstead, Chairperson.

ROLL CALL: The roll call showed the following results:
Present: Robert Garrett, Kaye Holman, Clay Olmstead, Chris Gamble, Mike Nekola, Chris Pontz, Joe Moloney and Gary Schnitker

Absent: Bill Loforte

Also Present: Recording Secretary Carol Ann Foote, and City Attorney, Roger Anderson

AGENDA APPROVAL.:

Chairman Olmstead added two issues to New Business on the agenda, Korrie Hutchinson’s request and September meeting date

change. Commissioner Holman made a motion to approve the agenda, as amended, seconded by Commissioner Garrett. Motion
carried unanimously.

PUBLIC COMMENTS:
No public comments.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:
Commissioner Nekola made a motion to approve the minutes, as written, seconded by Commissioner Holman. Motion carried
unanimously.

PUBLIC HEARINGS:
Open Public Hearing

To consider a request by Lauri Bentz for a special land use to operate a group day care home in a residential district at the following
described property: VILLAGE OF PERE MARQUETTE E 90 FT OF W 96 FT OF LOT 6 EXCEPT S 33 FT FOR ST. PURPOSES
BLOCK 5, also known as 918 Maple St. Group Daycare is defined as: “Group Day Care Home” means a private home in which more
than 6 but not more than 12 minor children are given care and supervision for periods of less than 24 hours a day unattended by a
parent or legal guardian, except children related to an adult member of the family by blood, marriage, or adoption. Group day care
home includes a home in which care is given to an unrelated minor child for more than 4 weeks during a calendar year.

Chairman Olmstead explained to the Commissioners that our zoning ordinance did not address day care facilities in the past. The
ordinance was recently amended and now defines the different types of day care. He read the definitions of family, group and day
care center. He stated that family and group day care facilities could be located in residential districts.

Lauri Bentz, 918 Maple St., told the Commission that she has been licensed for a group day care home at another address and would
like to start one at her new address.

Recording Secretary, Carol Ann Foote, said that there were fifty notices sent with two replies in opposition of the request. Chairman
Olmstead read letters from Norm White, Jr. and Jack and Charlene Harper opposing the request.

Closed Public Hearing

Commissioner Nekola reported that the committee met informally and did not come to a consensus.

Commissioner Nekola made a motion to approve the request for a special land use in order to operate a group day care facility at 918
Maple St. with the condition that the facility meets all local zoning standards and state licensing requirements, seconded by
Commissioner Holman.

Commissioner Garrett asked if there was a point when density becomes a problem. He stated that they have to look at the character of

the neighborhoods. There are density requirements for the condominiums. At some point he thinks the Planning Commission needs
to take a look at this.





August 7, 2007
Planning Commission Meeting

Attorney Anderson said that the Commission has to evaluate this request on the current standards. If the Planning Commission wants
to take a look at a particular standard such as density, they can. Commissioner Garrett stated that they should take another look at it.
Chairman Olmstead said that Mr. Harper had also raised that question. They need to refer it back to the Text Committee. He said
before now, nobody had to get permission. He said that standards had been set in Section 900:2.6 and Ms. Bentz had addressed those
standards. Chairman Olmstead read the standards. He said that Ms. Bentz had a lot that was much larger than the standard lot.
Commissioner Gamble asked about the fencing issue. Commissioner Nekola said that his motion said it would meet local regulations.
Carol Foote told Mr. Gamble that the Zoning Department had checked her property and the required fencing would be a 4 ft. chain
link fence around the play area. The play area is not adjacent to another dwelling, therefore a six foot fence is not required. She stated
that Ms. Bentz had submitted drawings that met the requirements.

The motion was voted on and approved unanimously.
Chairman Olmstead referred the text for day care facilities back to the Committee for further discussion.

UNFINISHED BUSINESS:

Comprehensive Plan:

Commissioner Holman said that she will meet with Gary and Joe about the comprehensive plan and the Mayor’s list of goals.
Chairman Olmstead asked that a list of goals be put in the packets for next month. Commissioner Moloney said that he meet with a
Mason County Representative from MSHDA. He will provide Commissioner Holman information from that meeting regarding rental
registration.

NEW BUSINESS:

Korrie Hutchinson Request:

Chairman Olmstead explained to the Commissioners that Korrie Hutchinson wrote a letter to the Commission asking them to
reconsider the fence conditions that were placed on her Special Land Use. She also attached a copy of the Michigan Zoning Enabling
Act. The Commission required Ms. Hutchinson to place a six ft. fence on the east side of the property adjacent to the next door
dwelling. Chairman Olmstead said that they could not reconsider because the ordinance required it and she had to comply with the
ordinance. He said that the Ordinance would have to be amended to eliminate fence requirements for daycare. The City Attorney has
sent a letter to Ms. Hutchinson in reply to her letter. Commissioner Holman said that the text committee would look at it.

Chairman Olmstead proposed to switch the September meeting from the 4™ to the 11"

Commissioner Holman made a motion to change the September meeting date to September 11, seconded by Commissioner Pontz.
Motion carried unanimously.

SITE PLAN REVIEW REPORT:
None

COMMISSIONERS’ COMMENTS AND COMMUNICATIONS:

Commissioner Holman stated that the text committee would be discussing fences, comp plan, awnings and possible control of the
number of daycares. She said that Mayor Henderson asked her to get the Commissions feedback on moving the Pere Marquette
Memorial to White Pine Village and replacing it with a statue. She said that the memaorial was falling apart and the Lions Club cannot
keep it up because of the cost. Commissioner Garrett stated that if it was falling apart, move it.

Commissioner Garrett announced that the City Council had approved the Park Initiative. If anyone is interested in serving on a
committee, they should contact Jackie Steckel. Commissioner Moloney thanked Commissioner Garrett for a good job.

Commissioner Holman told the Commissioners that the issue of membrane structures was back to text.
Chairman Olmstead commented that the City looked real good and commended the City workers for a job well done.
Commissioner Nekola said that he served on the Planning Commission when the Waterfront was the issue. Now you can see the fruits

of all the work. Commissioner Olmstead stated that there is more traffic down James St. than ever. Commissioner Holman said that
the Downtown Ludington Board was working to get the stores to stay open longer at night.





August 7, 2007
Planning Commission Meeting

ADJOURNMENT:

Commissioner Nekola made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 7:35 p.m., seconded by Commissioner Holman. Motion carried
unanimously.

Respectfully submitted,
Carol Ann Foote, Recording Secretary

Clay Olmstead, Chairperson






CITY OF LUDINGTON
PLANNING COMMSION
MINUTES 09/11/07

A meeting of the Ludington Planning Commission was held on Tuesday, September 11, 2007. The meeting was held at the Ludington
Municipal Building, 400 S. Harrison St., Ludington, MI and was called to order at 7:00 p.m. by Mike Nekola, Vice-Chairperson.

ROLL CALL: The roll call showed the following results:
Present: Robert Garrett, Kaye Holman, Mike Nekola, Chris Pontz, Joe Moloney, Gary Schnitker and Bill Loforte

Absent: Clay Olmstead (Excused), Chris Gamble
Also Present: Recording Secretary Carol Ann Foote
AGENDA APPROVAL.:

Commissioner Holman made a motion to approve the agenda, as written, seconded by Commissioner Garrett. Motion carried
unanimously.

PUBLIC COMMENTS:
No public comments.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:
Commissioner Holman made a motion to approve the minutes, as written, seconded by Commissioner Garrett. Motion carried
unanimously.

PUBLIC HEARINGS:
No public hearings.

UNFINISHED BUSINESS:

Comprehensive Plan:

Commissioner Moloney reported on the neighborhood improvement/rental registration goal. He said that he has been collecting data
from other communities and has talked to a MSHDA representative. He will continue build information until the time they present it
to City Council. Commissioner Nekola stated that part of this effort was to access MSHDA money.

Commissioner Holman reported that there would be a City goal setting meeting on September 25, 2007 that is open to the public. She
said that Mayor Henderson asked the Committee to look at the requirements for condominiums on the waterfront. Commissioner
Holman said that the Committee did meet and discussed this issue. They were in agreement that they were comfortable with the
Ordinance the way it is. Commissioner Moloney said that when they looked at the Comprehensive Plan, everything was right in line
with addressing density downtown. Commissioner Nekola suggested that they bring the Committee’s decision to a vote.

Commissioner Holman made a motion to inform the Mayor and City Council that the Text Committee has addressed the question of
possible changes to the Comprehensive Plan regarding condominiums and density along the waterfront and has decided not to make
any changes, seconded by Commissioner Garrett. The Planning Commission agreed with the Committee’s decision and the motion

carried unanimously.

Membrane Structures:

Commissioner Holman reported that the Committee met to make changes to the Ordinance regarding Membrane Covered Structures.
The changes would include definitions for awnings and canopies. Commissioner Holman read the proposed changes. She stated that
the definitions were taken from the Michigan Building Code.

Commissioner Nekola set a public hearing for the October 2, 2007 meeting.

Daycare Facilities:
Commissioner Holman did not have a report on Daycare Facilities.

NEW BUSINESS:
None






September 11, 2007
Planning Commission Meeting

SITE PLAN REVIEW REPORT:
Commissioner Holman reported that a Site Plan Review was held on August 15, 2007 for the review of plans for an increase in density
at One Ludington Place, 201 S. William St. The plan was approved for four additional units with the following conditions:

A minimum of ten feet between the clubhouse and buildings one and four.

All curb, streets and sidewalks on City property, damaged or destroyed, is replaced at One Ludington Place’s expense.
The sixty-eight units would be in the existing approved footprint of the four main structures.

There will be public access to the “in-field” area and all safety issues be addressed.

roDNPE

COMMISSIONERS’ COMMENTS AND COMMUNICATIONS:
None

ADJOURNMENT:
Commissioner Garrett made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 7:20p.m., seconded by Commissioner Holman. Motion carried
unanimously.

Respectfully submitted,
Carol Ann Foote, Recording Secretary

Mike Nekola Vice-Chairperson






CITY OF LUDINGTON
PLANNING COMMSION
MINUTES 10/02/07

A meeting of the Ludington Planning Commission was held on Tuesday, October 2, 2007. The meeting was held at the Ludington
Municipal Building, 400 S. Harrison St., Ludington, Ml and was called to order at 7:00 p.m. by Clay Olmstead, Chairperson.

ROLL CALL: The roll call showed the following results:
Present: Robert Garrett, Kaye Holman, Gary Schnitker, Clay Olmstead, Chris Gamble and Bill Loforte

Absent: Mike Nekola, excused, Chris Pontz and Joe Moloney, excused
Also Present: Recording Secretary, Carol Ann Foote and City Manager, John Shay
AGENDA APPROVAL.:

Commissioner Holman made a motion to approve the agenda, as written, seconded by Commissioner Garrett. Motion carried
unanimously.

PUBLIC COMMENTS:
No public comments.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:
Commissioner Holman made a motion to approve the minutes, as written, seconded by Commissioner Garrett. Motion carried
unanimously.

PUBLIC HEARINGS.:
To consider a text change to the Ludington Zoning Ordinance #23-00, Article 200.2, Definitions, Article 500.14,
Temporary Use Permits and Article 500.17, Membrane Covered Structures.

Public hearing was opened and closed with no comments.

Chairman Olmstead told the Commissioners that the issue of membrane covered structures had been in ongoing discussion for over
one year. The recording secretary said that there had been no public comment or communication regarding the issue.

Commissioner Holman reported that the text committee met and added the definitions of awnings and canopies. They also added
Section 500.14:3, Temporary Use. Article 500.17 was changed to clearly define a membrane covered structure.

Commissioner Holman made a motion to recommend to City Council to approve the proposed text changes to Article 200.2
Definitions, Section 200.2:1 and Section 200.2:3, Article 500.14, Temporary Use Permits, Section 500.14:3 and Article 500.17,
Membrane Covered Structures, Section 500.17:1, seconded by Commissioner Schnitker. Motion carried unanimously.

UNFINISHED BUSINESS:

Comprehensive Plan:

Commissioner Holman reported that there was a City Council goal setting session on September 25, 2007. The Mayor and City
Council was informed that the Planning Commission agreed not to change the Comprehensive Plan in regards to the condominiums
and density along the waterfront. The City Council did agree not to make any changes.

Chairman Olmstead stated that the Comprehensive Plan goals would be revisited. He said that he would meet with the City Manager
and present suggestions at the November meeting.

Daycare Facilities:
Commissioner Holman did not have a report on Daycare Facilities and stated that review was ongoing.

NEW BUSINESS:
None






October 2, 2007
Planning Commission Meeting

SITE PLAN REVIEW REPORT:
None

COMMISSIONERS’ COMMENTS AND COMMUNICATIONS:
None

ADJOURNMENT:
Commissioner Garrett made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 7:08 p.m., seconded by Commissioner Holman. Motion carried
unanimously.

Respectfully submitted,
Carol Ann Foote, Recording Secretary

Clay Olmstead, Chairperson






CITY OF LUDINGTON
PLANNING COMMSION
MINUTES 11/6/2007

A meeting of the Ludington Planning Commission was held on Tuesday, November 6, 2007. The meeting was held at the Ludington
Municipal Building, 400 S. Harrison St., Ludington, MI and was called to order at 7:00 p.m. by Clay Olmstead, Chairperson.

ROLL CALL: The roll call showed the following results:
Present: Robert Garrett, Kaye Holman, Gary Schnitker, Clay Olmstead, Chris Gamble, Chris Pontz, Joe Moloney and Bill Loforte

Absent: Mike Nekola, excused
Also Present: Recording Secretary, Carol Ann Foote
AGENDA APPROVAL.:

Commissioner Moloney made a motion to approve the agenda, as written, seconded by Commissioner Garrett. Motion carried
unanimously.

PUBLIC COMMENTS:
No public comments.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:
Commissioner Moloney made a motion to approve the minutes, as written, seconded by Commissioner Garrett. Motion carried
unanimously.

PUBLIC HEARINGS:
None

UNFINISHED BUSINESS:

Comprehensive Plan:
Chairman Olmstead stated that he would be meeting with individuals on the Comprehensive Plan goals and should have something to
present in December.

Commissioner Moloney reported that Commissioner Nekola and he would be meeting with a city employee regarding neighborhood
projects.

Daycare Facilities:
Commissioner Holman did not have a report on Daycare Facilities and stated that review was ongoing.

NEW BUSINESS:
None

SITE PLAN REVIEW REPORT:

Commissioner Moloney reported that a site plan review was held on October 18, 2007 for the review of plans for a proposed parking
lot for Prayer and Praise Assembly of God, 603 N. Staffon St. The site plan was approved with the following conditions:

Curb along the east side of the parking lot

If west property is developed, install bumper blocks

Lighting to shine down and light poles less than 16’ in height

Consider two exits on Mitchell St.

Approaches in the City right of way must be concrete with sidewalks delineated

®o0 o

COMMISSIONERS” COMMENTS AND COMMUNICATIONS:
Chairman Olmstead asked the Commissioners to think about new Planning Commission officers for the upcoming year.

ADJOURNMENT:
Commissioner Garrett made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 7:05 p.m., seconded by Commissioner Pontz. Motion carried
unanimously.

Respectfully submitted,
Carol Ann Foote, Recording Secretary

Clay Olmstead, Chairperson






CITY OF LUDINGTON
PLANNING COMMSION
MINUTES 12/4/2007

A meeting of the Ludington Planning Commission was held on Tuesday, December 4, 2007. The meeting was held at the Ludington
Municipal Building, 400 S. Harrison St., Ludington, Ml and was called to order at 7:00 p.m. by Clay Olmstead, Chairperson.

ROLL CALL: The roll call showed the following results:
Present: Robert Garrett, Kaye Holman, Gary Schnitker, Clay Olmstead, Chris Gamble, Chris Pontz, Joe Moloney and Bill Loforte

Absent: Mike Nekola
Also Present: Recording Secretary, Carol Ann Foote
AGENDA APPROVAL:

Commissioner Holman made a motion to approve the agenda, as written, seconded by Commissioner Moloney. Motion carried
unanimously.

PUBLIC COMMENTS:
No public comments.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:
Commissioner Garrett made a motion to approve the minutes, as written, seconded by Commissioner Holman. Motion carried
unanimously.

PUBLIC HEARINGS:
None

UNFINISHED BUSINESS:

Comprehensive Plan:

Chairman Olmstead told the Commissioners that the proposed goals were a compilation from different conversations he had.
Commissioner Moloney stated that he wanted to see more dune grass planted as a small action goal. He said that as far as City
legislation, they were working on childcare. He said that he would like to see more single family affordable housing. He stated that
under the non-motorized program, he would like more community walkability. Commissioner Garrett said that he read about green
communities. They take small vacant lots and alleys and plant flowers. They spruce up the areas. Commissioner Pontz said that the
DDA is involved in that kind of project. He stated that alley clean up is a City responsibility. Commissioner Garrett said that he was
trying to recruit people for the Parks Advisory Board. Commissioner Moloney said that he was interested in it. Commissioner Garrett
said he would like them to take a look at corner parking spots. Cars are getting smaller and the way the parking is laid out, you can
not see around the parked cars. Chairman Olmstead said that they could refer this kind of issue to the police department. He said that
these were proposed goals that they would work on all year. Nothing is etched in stone. Commissioner Garrett said that he would like
to see a historical district designation. Commissioner Schnitker said that he also had a passion for that. He took a poll with the local
bed and breakfast owners, and they were all open to the concept. He said there was two ways to go about it, federal or local. He said
he would volunteer to work on that goal. Commissioner Gamble stated that he heard that White Pine Village was moving to Cartier
Park. Commissioner Holman said that Ron Wood was in charge of White Pine Village. She said that there were very restrictive
covenants for Cartier Park. She suggested he talk to Greg Dykstra, Chairman of the Parks and Recreation Committee. Commissioner
Gamble said they need to look at public restroom facilities. The one on Rath Ave. has been closed. Commissioner Holman said that
they restroom would be torn down. The James St. facility will be open through Christmas. Commissioner Gamble said that they
should look at expanding the tourist season into the winter. He wanted to know if there were any restrictions on snowmobiles.
Commissioner Holman said that she did not think they were allowed. Commissioner Moloney asked if the access plan was for the
east or west. Commissioner Holman said that Tom Coleman and city and county officials have put a joint access plan together in
2006. It needs to be incorporated into the zoning ordinance. Chairman Olmstead said that they would need to look at it and see if any
other changes would need to be made to the ordinance. Commissioner Garrett stated that the Commission should keep track of the
special land uses granted in specific zoning areas. Commissioner Holman said that the issue on intrusive lighting was covered in site
plan reviews. Chairman Olmstead stated that if he decided to put in a spot light and the light shined in a condo window, it would be
an issue. Commissioner Holman asked if you would have to come to the city in order to install a spot light. Carol Foote said that the
building department does not regulate lighting issues outside of site plan review. Commissioner Garrett asked about the issue of
clarity of plan developments. Chairman Olmstead stated that they may want to take a look at combining some zoning districts.






December 4, 2007
Planning Commission Meeting

Chairman Olmstead said that he would be willing to volunteer for park development. He would like to see a fountain put in at Stearns
Park. The fountain would possibly be the kind that children run and play in.
Commissioners Schnitker, Garrett and Gamble said they would work on the East Ludington Avenue architectural heritage program.

Commissioners Moloney, Holman, Garrett and Olmstead said they would volunteer for park development.

Commissioners Holman, Moloney and Pontz volunteered for small action projects.

Daycare:
Commissioner Holman reported that there has been a letter sent to Larry Nix, but they have not heard anything from him yet.

NEW BUSINESS:
None

SITE PLAN REVIEW REPORT:
None

COMMISSIONERS’ COMMENTS AND COMMUNICATIONS:
Commissioner Moloney addressed the community saying that anyone knowing John Cooney should encourage him to get involved in
the issue of dog access in the City of Ludington.

Commissioner Pontz announced that the James St. Christmas tree would be decorated in the next couple of days.

ADJOURNMENT:
Commissioner Holman made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 7:55 p.m., seconded by Commissioner Moloney. Motion carried
unanimously.

Respectfully submitted,
Carol Ann Foote, Recording Secretary

Clay Olmstead, Chairperson





